
  
www.region2planning.com/jackson-county-planning-commission/ 

 

Jackson County Planning Commission 
 

Staffed by the Region 2 Planning Commission (R2PC) 
120 W. Michigan Avenue • Jackson, MI 49201 

Phone (517) 788-4426 • Fax (517) 788-4635 
 

MEETING NOTICE 

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: 
Grant E. Bauman 
R2PC Principal Planner 
(517) 768-6711 
gbauman@co.jackson.mi.us 

DATE: December 13, 2018 

TIME: 6:00 p.m. 

PLACE: 5th Floor Commission Chambers 
 Jackson County Tower Building 
 120 W. Michigan Avenue 
 Jackson, Michigan 49201 

MEETING AGENDA 
 

1. Call to order and pledge of allegiance 

2. Public comment [3 MINUTE LIMIT] 

3. Approval of minutes 

Approval of the November 1, 2018, meeting minutes [ACTION] ............................................................  3 

4. Approval of agenda 

Approval of the December 13, 2018, meeting agenda [ACTION] 

5. Request(s) for review, comment, and recommendation 

a. Consideration of township zoning amendment(s) 

(1) CZ #18-28 –Leoni Township [ACTION]........................................................................................  7 

(2) CZ #18-29 –Parma Township [ACTION] ....................................................................................  21 

(3) CZ #18-30 –Parma Township [ACTION] ....................................................................................  33 

(4) CZ #18-31 –Parma Township [ACTION] ....................................................................................  47 

b. Consideration of master plan(s) – None 

(1) MP #18-02 –Henrietta Township [ACTION] .............................................................................  69 

c. Farmland and Open Space Preservation Program (PA 116) application(s) – None 

(1) FA #18-05 –Columbia Township [ACTION] ...............................................................................  90 

6. Other business 

a. Unfinished business – None 

b. New business 

(1) Jackson County Master Plan [DISCUSSION] 

7. Public comment [2 MINUTE LIMIT] 

8. Commissioner comment 

9. Adjournment 

The next meeting of the Jackson County Planning Commission is scheduled for January 10, 2019 

12/13/18 JCPC Agenda Packet Page 1



This page is intentionally blank. 

12/13/18 JCPC Agenda Packet Page 2



 

Jackson County Planning Commission 
 

Staffed by the Region 2 Planning Commission (R2PC) 
120 W. Michigan Avenue • Jackson, MI 49201 

Phone (517) 788-4426 • Fax (517) 788-4635 
 

MEETING MINUTES 
November 1, 2018 

Jackson County Tower Building ● Jackson, Michigan 

Members Present: Timothy Burns, At Large; Roger Gaede, Environment; Nancy Hawley, At Large; 
Ted Hilleary, Education; Russ Jennings, At large; and Amy Torres, Industry and 
Economics 

 Members Absent: Jennifer Morris, At Large; Jim Videto, Agriculture; and Jonathan Williams, Jack-
son County Board of Commissioners 

 Liaisons Present: Grant Bauman, Principal Planner 

 Others Present: Dan Decker, Blackman Charter Township Planning Commission Chair 

Item 1. Call to Order and Pledge of Allegiance. The meeting was called to order at 6:00 p.m. by 
Chair Torres. Those in attendance rose and joined in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

Item 2. Public Comment. There was no public comment. 

Item 3. Approval of Minutes. A motion was made by Comm. Hilleary, and seconded by Comm. 
Burns, to approve the minutes of the October 11, 2018, meeting as written. The motion was 
approved unanimously. 

Item 4. Approval of the Agenda. Staff prepared the draft 2019 meeting and submittal deadline 
schedules and asked that it be added under Item 6.b. 

A motion was made by Comm. Hawley, and seconded by Comm. Hilleary, to approve the 
November 1, 2018, meeting agenda as amended. The motion was approved unanimously. 

Item 5. Request(s) for Review, Comment, and Recommendation 

a. Consideration of Township Zoning Amendment(s). 

(1) CZ #18-25 – Proposed rezoning in Blackman Charter Township 

Staff summarized its report regarding the proposed rezoning of the subject proper-
ties—known as Parcel ID#s 000-08-19-401-001-00 and 000-08-19-276-001-00 and 
located in Section 19 (T2S-R1W) of the Township—from ‘Agricultural (AG-1)’ to 
‘Heavy Industrial (I-2)’. County Planning Commissioners were advised to recommend 
approval with comments (please see the staff report). Staff also noted that traffic 
congestion on County Farm Road is a concern. Commissioners were informed that 
staff produced the report upon which the township planning commission’s recom-
mendation for approval was based. 

There was discussion among the Planning Commissioners regarding the request. 
Comm. Gaede noted that the zoning worksheet form submitted by the Township 
indicated that there are no known environmental constraints even though wetlands 

12/13/18 JCPC Agenda Packet Page 3



11/1/18 JCPC Minutes | Page 2 
 

and floodplains are present. He suggested that the response be changed from ‘no’ 
to ‘yes’. Comm. Torres replied that a baseline environmental assessment of the 
properties indicates that there are not any constraints, but that the Township is 
aware of the presence of wetlands and floodplains. She also stated that deed re-
striction covenants may be used to address the buffering/landscaping of the site in 
addition to the zoning ordinance requirements. Comm. Hilleary voiced his concern 
regarding the traffic issues on County Farm Road and Springport Road. Comm. 
Torres replied that the Township is aware of the traffic issues. Comm. Hawley stated 
that the wetlands should be retained as they aid in drainage and water quality. She 
also noted that those areas need to be protected in southern Michigan. 

A motion was made by Comm. Hilleary, and seconded by Comm. Jennings, to rec-
ommend approval with staff and commissioner comments of the proposed I-2 
(Heavy Industrial) rezoning to the Blackman Charter Township Board. The motion 
was approved unanimously. 

(2) CZ #18-26 – Proposed zoning ordinance text amendments regarding ‘Combined 
Residential and Office or Business Units’ in Summit Township 

Staff summarized its report, explaining that ‘combined residential and office or busi-
ness units’ are an existing conditional use in the Township’s office and commercial 
districts, but that the residential use is limited to occupancy by the owner of the unit 
or business located in the unit. The proposed amendment would remove this re-
striction and clarify some other conditions. County Planning Commissioners were 
advised to recommend approval with comments (please see the staff report), noting 
concern over the condition limiting parking to passenger vehicles. Commissioners 
were informed that staff consulted with the Township’s zoning administrator on the 
development of the amendment. 

A motion was made by Comm. Hilleary, and seconded by Comm. Burns, to recom-
mend approval with staff comments of the proposed text amendments to the 
Parma Township Board (please see the staff report). The motion was approved 
unanimously. 

(3) CZ #18-27 – Proposed zoning ordinance text amendments regarding ‘Solar Energy 
Facilities’ in Summit Township 

Staff summarized its report on the proposed zoning ordinance text amendments 
that would allow ‘small solar energy facilities’ as a permitted use in all zoning dis-
tricts and utility grid, large solar energy facilities’ as a conditional use in the Agricul-
tural (AG-1), Light Industrial (I-1), and Heavy Industrial (I-2) districts. Codified condi-
tions/requirements apply to both uses. County Planning Commissioners were ad-
vised to recommend approval (please see the staff report). Commissioners were in-
formed that staff consulted with the Township’s planning commission on the devel-
opment of the amendment. 

There was discussion among the Planning Commissioners regarding the request. 
Comm. Torres pointed out the typographic mistake in the title to Section 
150.257(L)(2)(a)2. It should read: ‘Maximum Height’. Comm. Gaede was concerned 

12/13/18 JCPC Agenda Packet Page 4



11/1/18 JCPC Minutes | Page 3 
 

that Section 150.257(L)(4)(a) requires that security fencing be located inside any re-
quired perimeter screening. He suggested that this should be left up to the owner, 
as trees are expensive. 

A motion was made by Comm. Hawley, and seconded by Comm. Hilleary, to recom-
mend approval with commissioner comments of the proposed text amendments to 
the Summit Township Board (please see the staff report). The motion was approved 
unanimously. 

b. Consideration of Master Plan(s). None. 

c. Farmland & Open Space Preservation Program (PA 116) application(s). None. 

Item 6. Other Business 

a. Unfinished Business. None. 

b. New Business. 

Staff submitted the draft schedule of JCPC meetings and submittal deadlines for 2019 to 
the Commission for its review and approval. Meetings remain on the second Thursday 
of each month, with the exception of November when the meeting is on the first Thurs-
day. The deadlines for submittal remain on the Wednesday of the week prior to the 
meeting. 

A motion was made by Comm. Burns, and seconded by Comm. Hilleary, to approve the 
2019 meeting and submittal deadline schedules for approval as presented. The motion 
was approved unanimously. 

Item 7. Public Comment. There was no public comment. 

Item 8. Commissioner Comment. There was no commissioner comment. 

Item 9. Adjournment. The meeting was adjourned by Chair Torres at 6:36 p.m. 

 

Respectfully submitted by:  
Grant Bauman, Recording Secretary 

 

12/13/18 JCPC Agenda Packet Page 5



This page is intentionally blank. 

12/13/18 JCPC Agenda Packet Page 6



  
www.region2planning.com/jackson-county-planning-commission/ 

 

Jackson County Planning Commission 
 

Staffed by the Region 2 Planning Commission (R2PC) 
120 W. Michigan Avenue • Jackson, MI 49201 

Phone (517) 788-4426 • Fax (517) 788-4635 
 

COORDINATED ZONING REPORT | #18-28 

 To: County Planning Commissioners 
 From: Grant E. Bauman 
 Date: December 13, 2018 

 Proposal: The rezoning of a property in Section 12 (T3S-R1E) of Leoni Township 

Request 

A property is proposed for rezoning to ‘Heavy Industrial (M)’ from ‘Agricultural (AG)’. 

Purpose 

The proposed use of the subject property was not provided*. 

Location and Size of the Property 

The subject property (ID# 000-14-12-200-001-01) is situated in Section 12 (T3S-R1E) of the Township 
(see Figure 1). It is located on the south side of Page Avenue, east of Portage Road, and has an area of 
approximately 16.16 acres. The 3 properties located directly to the south and west (see Figure 1) were 
considered for rezoning to ‘Heavy Industrial (M)’ by the JCPC in April of 2018 (coordinated zoning case 
#18-07); the recommendation made by the Commission was disapproval. 

Land Use and Zoning 

Current Land Use – A residence is located on the subject property, although much of the parcel ap-
pears to be vacant according to aerial photography (see Figures 4a & 4b). 

Future Land Use – The future land use map in the Leoni Township Master Plan places the subject 
property in an area recommended for ‘Agricultural Preservation’ (see Figure 2), as are all of the sur-
rounding properties. 

Current Zoning – The subject property is zoned ‘Agricultural (AG)’, as are properties to the north and 
east (see Figure 3). However, properties to the south and west were recently rezoned to ‘Heavy Indus-
trial (M)’.† 

Public Facilities and Environmental Constraints 

Water and Sewer Availability – Municipal water and sewer service is not available to the subject 
property (according to coordinated zoning case #18-07). However, the Leoni Township Waste Water 
Treatment Plant is located nearby on the property to the west. 

                                                 
* Please note that the proposed use is listed for informational purposes only. It should not be utilized in making the rezoning 
decision. Circumstances may change tomorrow which make the proposed use impractical. All of the uses that the proposed 
zoning designation would allow are pertinent to the rezoning request. 
† The township zoning application and the township planning commission meeting minutes indicate that the property is zoned 
‘residential’, which is incorrect. 

12/13/18 JCPC Agenda Packet Page 7



CZ #18-28 Page 2 
 

Public Road/Street Access – Page Avenue, a paved county local road in this part of Leoni Township 
(see the Jackson County 2008 Road Map), provides direct access to the subject property. The road is not 
constructed to ‘Class A’ standards east of Ballard Road. 

Environmental Constraints – It appears from aerial photography that the Huttenlocker Drain may 
border the subject property to the east (see Figure 4b). A site visit confirmed the presence of that water 
course. 

Analysis and Recommendation 

Township Planning Commission Recommendation – The Leoni Township Planning Commission recom-
mended approval of the proposed rezoning to ‘M’ (see the meeting minutes). 

JCPC Staff Analysis – Leoni Township’s Zoning Plan contains the following criteria upon which a rezoning 
request must be considered: 

1. Is the proposed rezoning consistent with the policies and uses proposed for that area in the 
Master Plan? 

No. ‘Industrial’ uses are not planned for the general area. Although Leoni Township’s future land 
use map recommends ‘Public/Quasi-Public’ uses for most of a property directly to the west (and 
waste water treatment plants are included in the category description), ‘Agricultural Preserva-
tion’ is recommended for the subject property (see Figure 2). 

2. Will all of the uses allowed under the proposed rezoning be compatible with other zones and 
uses in the surrounding area? 

No. Although parcels to the south and west were recently rezoned ‘Heavy Industrial (M)’, the 
subject property and other parcels to the north and east remain part of an ‘Agricultural (AG)’ 
district. The following permitted and conditional uses are allowed in the ‘Heavy Industrial (M)’ 
district: 

Permitted uses‡: manufacturing, processing and/or fabrication (i.e., automotive and aircraft parts (not including tires) 
and metal working; automotive assembling, including major repair; bag, rug and carpet cleaning; bakery, large whole-
sale and chain types; bottling plant, brewery, or dairy products plant; candy, potato chips, and flavoring extracts; 
cleaning or dyeing plants and laundries; cold storage plant; electrical equipment and motor assembly; electric foundry 
or small foundry for nonferrous metals; experimental laboratory; felt and felt products; flexible hose lines and fittings, 
basic manufacture; garage maintenance tools and equipment; garment making, apparel and accessories; heating and 
air conditioning equipment; mattress making and box springs; paper products fabrication; pharmaceuticals, cosmetics 
and toiletries; plastic products from purchased plastic materials; professional and scientific instruments; surgical sup-
ports and hospital equipment; tool and die shops—screw machine products; tube fabrication, bending and welding; 
wire fabricators; wood products assembly; any other light manufacturing, processing and/or fabrication); manufactur-
ing (basic), processing and/or fabrication (i.e., abrasives, acid, alcohol, ammonia and asbestos; bone black, carbon 
black, and lamp black; brick, clay, or tile manufacture; canning and preserving plants; charcoal and coke, basic manu-
facture; chemicals, manufacture or processing; cinderblock fabrication; creosote treatment; detergents, soaps and 
byproducts; forge plants and foundries; fungicides and insecticides; galvanizing and anodizing processes; gases, man-
ufacture; glass products; glue, size or gelatin, manufacture; grain milling and mixing; graphite manufacture; insula-
tion, manufacture or fabrication; metals, ingots, castings, sheets, bars or rods; oils and fats, animal or vegetable, 
manufacture; paints, pigments, enamels, japans, lacquer, and varnishes; paper pulp and cellulose; paraffin, wax and 
wax products; petroleum and petroleum products; plastics, basic manufacture; plating of metals; rubber and rubber 
products, manufacture; sauerkraut, vinegar and yeast, manufacture; sawmill or planing mill; serums, toxins, and vi-

                                                 
‡ An unabridged listing of permitted uses is located in Sec. 42-243(b) of Chapter 42 (Zoning) of the Leoni Township Code of 
Ordinances. Exclusions and other stated parameters (e.g., setbacks, etc.) found in the unabridged section were not included in 
the listing in order to make it easier to read. 

12/13/18 JCPC Agenda Packet Page 8



CZ #18-28 Page 3 
 

ruses, manufacture; and any other basic manufacturing, processing and/or fabrication); sale at wholesale and retail, 
warehousing and storage, and repair, rental and servicing of any of the uses; other uses by right (i.e., canteen service; 
carnival, circus or other temporary outdoor entertainment; contractor's yards for vehicles, equipment, materials 
and/or supplies, but excluding asphalt and cement mixing; gasoline service station; landing field for airport or ro-
tocraft; municipal buildings, including warehouses, outside storage and garages; parking and/or storage yards for mo-
tor vehicles (no junked vehicles) and including transport equipment; and trucking freight terminals and yards. 

Conditional uses§: alkali plants, manufacture; asphalt plants; automobile wrecking and salvage yards; building materi-
als salvage yard; bulk storage of explosives; cement manufacture and concrete mixing operations; fertilizer manufac-
ture; gravel and rock crushing operations; gypsum and other forms of plaster base manufacture; incinerators or re-
duction of garbage, refuse, bones, offal or dead animals; junkyard; meat slaughtering; sanitary landfill and/or dump; 
stockyards and livestock auction yards; storage of liquid petroleum gas, 500 gallons or over; storage of flammable liq-
uids, 3,000 gallons or over; any other industrial use which is determined by the township board to be of the same 
general character or similar nature; automobile storage yards; recreational vehicle storage yards; light industrial use; 
and telecommunications towers. 

3. Will public services and facilities be significantly adversely impacted by a development or use 
allowed under the requested rezoning? 

Yes. Page Avenue, although paved, is not built to ‘Class A’ road standards in this part of Leoni 
Township and is only classified as a county local road. Water and sewer service are not provided 
to the subject property, according to the Township. 

4. Will the uses allowed under the proposed rezoning be equally or better suited to the area 
than uses allowed under the current zoning district? 

No. Although the Leoni Township Waste Water Treatment Plant is located nearby to the west, 
no other existing industrial uses are located on surrounding properties. It also appears that the 
Huttenlocker Drain borders the subject property to the east (see Figure 4b). 

JCPC Staff Advisement – The proposed rezoning does not conform to the Leoni Township Master Plan. 
Although a nearby property to the west is recommended for ‘Public/Quasi-Public’ uses (likely due to the 
presence of the Leoni Township Waste Water Treatment Plant), other industrial uses are not proposed 
in the general area on the future land use map. Page Avenue is only a local county road in this part of 
Leoni Township and is not built to ‘Class A’ standards. Water and 
sewer service is not currently available, although the Leoni Town-
ship Waste Water Treatment plant is located nearby. The JCPC 
also voted to recommend disapproval of the adjacent properties 
ultimately rezoned ‘Heavy Industrial (M)’ in April of 2018 (see Fig-
ure 1). Based upon this analysis, staff advises the Jackson County 
Planning Commission to recommend DISAPPROVAL of the ‘Heavy 
Industrial (M)’rezoning request to the Leoni Township Board. 

  

                                                 
§ An unabridged listing of conditional uses is located in Sec. 42-243(c) of Chapter 42 (Zoning) of the Leoni Township Code of 
Ordinances. Conditions found in the unabridged section were not included in the listing in order to make it easier to read. 

Suggested Actions: 

(1) Recommend APPROVAL 
(2) Recommend DISAPPROVAL 
(3) Recommend APPROVAL 

WITH COMMENTS 
(4) Take NO ACTION 

12/13/18 JCPC Agenda Packet Page 9



CZ #18-28 Page 4 
 

Figure 1 

Location 

 

Figure 2 

Municipal Future Land Use 

 

12/13/18 JCPC Agenda Packet Page 10



CZ #18-28 Page 5 
 

Figure 3 

Municipal Zoning 

 

Figure 4a 

Aerial Photo 

 

12/13/18 JCPC Agenda Packet Page 11



CZ #18-28 Page 6 
 

Figure 4b 

Aerial Photo 

 

 

12/13/18 JCPC Agenda Packet Page 12



JCPC Case #: _____-_____ 
(For JCPC Use Only) ZONING AMENDMENT FORM 

 
 JACKSON COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 

(COORDINATING ZONING) 
Return to: Jackson County Planning Commission ∙ c/o Region 2 Planning Commission ∙ 120 W. Michigan Avenue ∙ Jackson, Michigan 49201 

Please submit the Planning Commission meeting minutes and any reports/exhibits the Commission used to makes its recommendation with this form. Use 
a separate form for each proposed zoning change. Please include a legal description/ survey with rezoning requests in addition to the Parcel ID Number. 

A copy of this form with the JCPC recommendation will be mailed back to the Clerk, who will return a copy to the JCPC with the Township Board Action. 

 

THE ______________________________ TOWNSHIP PLANNING COMMISSION submits the following proposed zoning change to the Jackson 
County Planning Commission for its review, comment, and recommendation: 

(ANSWER EITHER A or B) 

A. DISTRICT BOUNDARY CHANGE (REZONING): 

(Provide the legal and popular property descriptions, the Parcel ID Number(s), the number of acres, and the section(s) in which the 
property is located. Attach additional sheets if more space is needed. Attach a map showing all changes and additions.) 

 ________________________________________________________________________________________________________________  

 ________________________________________________________________________________________________________________  

 ________________________________________________________________________________________________________________  

1. The above described property has a proposed zoning change FROM  ____________________________________________ ( ______ ) 

ZONE TO  ___________________________________________________ ( ______ ) ZONE. 

2. PURPOSE OF PROPOSED CHANGE:  ________________________________________________________________________________  

 _____________________________________________________________________________________________________________  

B. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT: 

The following Article(s) and Section(s) is amended or altered:  ARTICLE  ______________________ SECTION  ____________________  

The NEW SECTION reads as follows: (Attach additional sheets if more space is needed.)  ________________________________________  

 ________________________________________________________________________________________________________________  

 ________________________________________________________________________________________________________________  

C. PUBLIC HEARING on the above amendment was held on:    month __________    day __________    year __________ 

D. NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING was published/mailed on the following date:    month __________    day __________    year __________ 

(Notice must be provided at least fifteen days prior to the public hearing.) 

E. THE NEWSPAPER (having general circulation in Township) carrying the NOTICE: _____________________________________________  

The PROPOSED ZONING AMENDMENT described herein was duly considered by the Township Planning Commission and will be 

forwarded to the Township Board with a recommendation to  APPROVE or  DISAPPROVE. 

________________________________________  Chair or  Secretary ______ / ______ / ______ (enter date) 

JACKSON COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION (JCPC) ACTION: 

1. Date of Meeting:    month _____________    day _____________    year ______________ 

2. The JCPC herewith certifies receipt of the proposed amendment on the above date and: 

 Recommends APPROVAL of the zoning change 

 Recommends DISAPPROVAL of the zoning change for the reasons stated in the attached letter. 

 Recommends APPROVAL of the zoning change with comments, as stated in the attached letter. 

 Takes NO ACTION. 

________________________________________, Recording Secretary ______ / ______ / ______ (enter date) 

TOWNSHIP BOARD ACTION: 

1. Date of Meeting:    month _____________    day _____________    year ______________ 

2. The ____________________ Township Board herewith certifies that a legally constituted meeting held on the above date and that 

the proposed amendment  PASSED,  DID NOT PASS, or was  REFERRED ANEW to the Township Planning Commission. 

 

Township Clerk 
Revised: 12/19/14 

12/13/18 JCPC Agenda Packet Page 13

gbauman
Typewriter
18      28

gbauman
Typewriter
Leoni

gbauman
Typewriter
A property identified as #000-14-12-200-001-01 in Section 14 (T3S, R1E) of the Township.

gbauman
Typewriter
Agricultural                                                                     AG

gbauman
Typewriter
Heavy Industrial                                                                      M

gbauman
Typewriter
9                              5                           2018

gbauman
Typewriter
8                            19                         2018

gbauman
Typewriter
Morning Star

gbauman
Typewriter
x



12/13/18 JCPC Agenda Packet Page 14



12/13/18 JCPC Agenda Packet Page 15



12/13/18 JCPC Agenda Packet Page 16



12/13/18 JCPC Agenda Packet Page 17



12/13/18 JCPC Agenda Packet Page 18



12/13/18 JCPC Agenda Packet Page 19



12/13/18 JCPC Agenda Packet Page 20



  
www.co.jackson.mi.us/county_planning_commission 

 

Jackson County Planning Commission 
 

Staffed by the Region 2 Planning Commission (R2PC) 
120 W. Michigan Avenue • Jackson, MI 49201 

Phone (517) 788-4426 • Fax (517) 788-4635 
 

COORDINATED ZONING REPORT | #18-29 

 To: County Planning Commissioners 
 From: Grant E. Bauman 
 Date: December 13, 2018 

 Proposal: ‘Commercial Medical Marihuana Facilities’ in Parma Township — Further 
Amendments 

Background Information 

Recent amendments to the Parma Township Zoning Ordinance pertain to the regulation of ‘Commercial 
Medical Marihuana Facilities’. Those amendments (coordinated zoning reports #17-31 and #18-29) 
amended the Ordinance as follows: 

 Provided a definition for a ‘Commercial Medical Marihuana Facility’ and other associated defi-
nitions (i.e., ‘Provisioning Center’, ‘Processor’, ‘Secure Transporter’, ‘Grower’, ‘Marihuana’, 
‘Medical Marihuana’, ‘Patient’, ‘Permit’, and ‘Person’) to Article II (Definitions). 

 Added ‘Grower, Class C’, ‘Processor’, ‘Provisioning Center’ and ‘Secure Transporter’ as condi-
tional uses in the Agricultural (AG-1) district (Section 4.1(C)). 

 Added ‘Commercial Medical Marihuana Facility’ to the listing of ‘additional development re-
quirements for certain uses’ (i.e., Section 6.7). 

The Parma Township Planning Commission is now presenting the following additional item regarding 
‘Commercial Medical Marihuana Facilities’ to the Jackson County Planning Commission (JCPC) for its 
comment and recommendation: 

 An amendment adding Section 4.7 of the Zoning Ordinance, establishing the ‘Commercial Med-
ical Marihuana (CMM) Overlay District’. 

Analysis and Advisement 

The proposed amendment adding Section 4.7 of the Parma Township Zoning Ordinance will create the 
‘CMM Overlay district’, which is limited properties located in the ‘General Commercial (C-1)’ and ‘High-
way Service [Commercial] (C-2)’ zoning districts. The effect of a rezoning to CMM is that a ‘Provisioning 
Center’ will be allowed as a conditional use. All of the regulations pertaining to the underlying zoning 
district (i.e., ‘C-1’ or ‘C-2’) will stay in effect after a property is rezoned. The proposed section follows: 

  

12/13/18 JCPC Agenda Packet Page 21



CZR #18-29 Page 2 
 

ARTICLE IV 
ZONING DISTRICTS REGULATIONS 

. . . 

Section 4.7  CMM: COMMERCIAL MEDICAL MARIHUANA OVERLAY DISTRICT 

A. Purpose 

The Commercial Medical Marihuana Overlay District (“CMM Overlay District”) is in-
tended to provide opportunities for the development of certain Commercial Medical 
Marihuana Facilities permitted under the MMFLA. This Section proposes to accomplish 
this through the implementation of regulations that promote the use of land within the 
CMM Overlay District for certain Commercial Medical Marihuana Facilities. 

B. CMM Overlay District Boundaries; Applications to Rezone 

The CMM Overlay District is established as an overlay zoning district. Applications to re-
zone to CMM Overlay District will be considered only for parcels within the C-1 General 
Commercial District and the C-2 Highway Service District, as designated on the Parma 
Township Zoning Map. Upon receiving rezoning approval, land located within such over-
lay district may be developed according to the provisions of the underlying zoning dis-
trict or according toand the provisions of this Section. 

C. Conditional Uses 

The following uses are permitted in the CMM Overlay District with a conditional use per-
mit granted by the Township Board, after review and recommendation by the Planning 
Commission, in accordance with the provisions of Article VI-Conditional Uses. 

1. Provisioning Center 

Staff suggests that the last sentence of the proposed Section 4.7(B) be changed to read as revised 
above. All of the provisions of the underlying zoning district still apply, regardless of the development of 
a ‘Provisioning Center’. Section 3.1 of the Zoning Ordinance 
should also be amended by adding the ‘CMM Overlay District’ to 
the end of the listing of zoning districts. 

Based on the above analysis, staff advises the Jackson County 
Planning Commission to recommend APPROVAL WITH COM-
MENTS of the establishment of a ‘CMM Overlay District’ and al-
lowing a ‘Provisioning Center’ as a conditional use in the new 
district (see above). 

 

Suggested Actions: 

(1) Recommend APPROVAL 
(2) Recommend DISAPPROVAL 
(3) Recommend APPROVAL 

WITH COMMENTS 
(4) Take NO ACTION 

12/13/18 JCPC Agenda Packet Page 22



JCPC Case #:
(ForJCPCUse Only) ZONING AMENDMENT FORM

JACKSON COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION
(COORDINATING ZONING)

Return to: Jackson County Planning Commission •c/o Region 2 Planning Commission •120 W. Michigan Avenue •Jackson, Michigan 49201
Please submit the Planning Commission meeting minutes and any reports/exhibits the Commission used to makes its recommendation with thisform. Use
a separateformfor each proposed zoning change. Please include a legal description/ survey with rezoning requests in addition to the Parcel ID Number.
A copy of this form with the JCPC recommendation will be mailed back to the Clerk, who will return a copy to the JCPC with the Township Board Action.

TOWNSHIP PLANNING COMMISSION submits the following proposed zoning change to the JacksonTHE
County Planning Commission for its review, comment, and recommendation:
(ANSWER EITHER A or B)
A. DISTRICT BOUNDARY CHANGE (REZONING):

(Provide the legal and popular property descriptions, the Parcel ID Number(s), the number of acres, and the section(s) in which the
property is located. Attach additional sheets if more space is needed. Attach a map showing ail changes and additions.)

1. The above described property has a proposed zoning change FROM
ZONE TO ) ZONE

2. PURPOSE OF PROPOSED CHANGE:

B. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT:
The following Article(s) and Section(s) is amended or altered: ARTICLE
The NEW SECTION reads as follows: (Attach additional sheets if more space is needed.)

V, 7v v / / 1 SECTION

,30 / ftday 3ACLJOC. PUBLIC HEARING on the above amendment was held on: month
D. NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING was published/mailed on the following date: month

year
day ! (o ZJb7 £ 0 / 8"year

(Notice must be provided at least fifteen days prior to the public hearing.)
E. THE NEWSPAPER (having general circulation in Township) carrying the NOTICE: /J\JL Su-g* o hOsnsrij

^The PROPOSED ZONING AMENDMENT described herein was duly considered by the Township Planning Commission and will be
forwarded to the Township Board with a recommendation to0APPROVE or Q DISAPPROVE.

' O Chair or Q]Secretary / / (enter date)
JACKSON COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION (JCPC) ACTION:

1. Date of Meeting: month day year
2. The JCPC herewith certifies receipt of the proposed amendment on the above date and:

I I Recommends APPROVAL of the zoning change
I I Recommends DISAPPROVAL of the zoning change for the reasons stated in the attached letter.
I I Recommends APPROVAL of the zoning change with comments, as stated in the attached letter.

Takes NO ACTION.
Recording Secretary (enter date)

TOWNSHIP BOARD ACTION:
1. Date of Meeting: month
2. The

day year
Township Board herewith certifies that a legally constituted meeting held on the above date and that

the proposed amendment Q PASSED,Q DID NOT PASS, or was Q REFERRED ANEW to the Township Planning Commission.

Township Clerk
Revised:12/19/14

12/13/18 JCPC Agenda Packet Page 23

gbauman
Typewriter
18      29



PARMA TOWNSHIP
JACKSON COUNTY, MICHIGAN

ZONING ORDINANCE AMENDMENT
ORDINANCE NO.

At a regular meeting of the Township Board of Parma Township, Jackson County, Michigan, held at the
p.m., Township Board Member

moved to adopt the following ordinance, which motion was seconded
Parma Township Hall on ., 2018, at

by Township Board Member

An Ordinance to amend the Parma Township Zoning Ordinance, as amended, to
establish the Commercial Medical Marihuana Overlay District; and to provide
for zoning regulation of Provisioning Centers as conditional uses within such
overlay district; in order to maintain the public health, safety and welfare of the
residents and visitors to Parma Township.

PARMA SssiSR TOWNSHIP, JACKSON COUNTY, MICHIGAN, ORDAINS:

SECTION 1. AMENDMENT TO ZONING ORDINANCE ARTICLE IV, TO ADD SECTION 4.7:
Zoning Ordinance Article IV, is amended to add Section 4.7, CMM, Commercial Medical Marihuana
Overlay District, providing as follows:

Section 4.7 CMM: COMMERCIAL MEDICAL MARIHUANA OVERLAY DISTRICT

A. Purpose

The Commercial Medical Marihuana Overlay District (“CMM Overlay District”) is
intended to provide opportunities for the development of certain Commercial Medical
Marihuana Facilities permitted under the MMFLA. This Section proposes to accomplish
this through the implementation of regulations that promote the use of land within the
CMM Overlay District for certain Commercial Medical Marihuana Facilities.

CMM Overlay District Boundaries; Applications to RezoneB.
The CMM Overlay District is established as an overlay zoning district. Applications to
rezone to CMM Overlay District will be considered only for parcels within the C-l
General Commercial District and the C-2 Highway Service District, as designated on the
Parma Township Zoning Map. Upon receiving rezoning approval, land located within
such overlay district may be developed according to the provisions of the underlying
zoning district or according to the provisions of this Section.

Conditional UsesC.
The following uses are permitted in the CMM Overlay District with a conditional use
permit granted by the Township Board, after review and recommendation by the Planning
Commission, in accordance with the provisions of Article VI-Conditional Uses.

Provisioning Center1.

12/13/18 JCPC Agenda Packet Page 24



SECTION 2. SEVERABILITY: The provisions of this Ordinance are hereby declared to be severable
and if any provision, section, or part of this Ordinance is declared invalid or unconstitutional by a court
of competent jurisdiction, such decision shall only affect the particular provisions, section, or part
involved in such decision and shall not affect or invalidate the remainder of such Ordinance, which shall
continue in full force and effect.

SECTION 3. EFFECTIVE DATE: This Ordinance shall become effective seven (7) days after its
publication following final adoption or as required by law.
SECTION 4. REPEAL: All Ordinances or parts of Ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed.
YEAS:

NAYS:

ABSENT/ABSTAIN:

ORDINANCE DECLARED ADOPTED.

Wendy Chamberlain, Township Supervisor

12/13/18 JCPC Agenda Packet Page 25



CERTIFICATION

I hereby certify that:

The above is a true copy of an Ordinance adopted by the Parma Township Board at a duly
scheduled and noticed meeting of that Township Board held on
required statutory procedures.

1.
, 2018, pursuant to the

A summary of the above Ordinance was duly published in the
newspaper, a newspaper that circulates within Parma Township, on _

2.
, 2018.

Within 1 week after such publication, I recorded the above Ordinance in a book of ordinances
kept by me for that purpose, including the date of passage of the ordinance, the names of the
members of the township board voting, and how each member voted.

3.

I filed an attested copy of the above Ordinance with the Jackson County Clerk on
, 2018.

4.

ATTESTED:

Donald Spangler, Township Clerk

12/13/18 JCPC Agenda Packet Page 26



PARMA PLANNING COMMISSION

The regular meeting of the Parma Planning Commission was call to order at approximately

7:00 p.m. in the Township Parking lot by Janette Mead

Members Present: Keith Mohney-Dan Merritt -Janette Mead

Motion by Dan Merritt seconded by Keith Mohney to table September 5, 2018 minute meetings.

Motion by Dan Merritt to proceed with Public meeting, seconded by Keith Mohney.

Attorney explained large gathering ordinance.
Guest present was Katie Miller.

Motion by Keith Mohney seconded by Dan Merritt to close public meeting.

Motion to approve minutes from the July 2018 by Dan Merritt seconded by Keith Mohney.

Motion by Dan Merritt to submit to Parma Township Board for approval of Large Gathering

Ordiance and submit to Region II planning commission, seconded by Keith Mohney

Dan Merritt - yes

Keith Mohney-yes

Janette Mead-yes

Motion by Dan Merritt, seconded by Janette Mead, for Section 4 for approval of an over-lay district.

Keith Mohney -yes Janette Mead-yesDan Merritt - yes

Motion by Dan Merritt seconded by Keith Mohney that Tax ID # 000-06-27-451-001-01be included in
the over-lay district of Parma Township.

Keith Mohney-yesDan Merritt - yes Janette -yes

Motion to adjourn by Dan Merritt, second by Keith Mohney.

12/13/18 JCPC Agenda Packet Page 27



PARMA TOWNSHIP
NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING

The Parma Township Planning Commission will hold a public
hearing on October 3rd at 7:00 pm, at the Parma Township Hall,
16407 Comdon Road, Albion, MI. The following will be
considered: An amendment to the Parma Township Zoning
ordinance to clarify the requirements for large Gatherings; An
Ordinance to amend the Parma Township Zoning Ordinance to
establish the Commercial Medical Marihuana Overlay District;
and to provide for zoning regulation of Provisioning Centers as
conditional uses within such overlay district, and An Ordinance
to amend the Parma Township Zoning to Amend the Zoning
Ordinance Map and rezone Parcel Number 000-06-27-451-001-
01 from C-l, General Commercial District to CMM,
Commercial Medical Marihuana Overlay District.

A copy of the proposed ordinance amendments are available for
inspection at the Parma Township Hall, 16407 Comdon Road,
Albion MI 49224, and also will be available for inspection at the
public hearing. Written comments on the proposed ordinance
amendments will be received by the Township at the Township
Hall prior to the public hearing or at the public hearing. Oral
comments may also be made at the public hearing.

Donald Spangler
Parma Township Clerk
517-629-8277

Posted 10/1/18 @ 8:15 am
By Louise Boehlke, Deputy Clerk

12/13/18 JCPC Agenda Packet Page 28



"Louise Boehike" <parmatwp@core.com>
Planning Commission notice
Wed, September 12, 2018 3:26 pm
ads@saiesmanpublications.com

From:
Subject:
Date:
To:

Please publish the attached in your Salesman and Morning Star editions on September 16th.

Contact me if you have questions.

Thank youI

Louise

Attachments:
untitled"[l.l]

Size: 0.1 k !

Type: text/plain
Notice of Public Hearing on Oct 3rd.doc

Size:32 k
Type:application/msword

12/13/18 JCPC Agenda Packet Page 29



PARMA TOWNSHIP
NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING

The Parma Township Planning Commission will hold a public hearing on October 3rd at
7:00 pm, at the Parma Township Hall, 16407 Comdon Road, Albion, MI. The following will be
considered: An amendment to the Parma Township Zoning ordinance to clarity the requirements
for large Gatherings; An Ordinance to amend the Parma Township Zoning Ordinance to establish
the Commercial Medical Marihuana Overlay District; and to provide for zoning regulation of
Provisioning Centers as conditional uses within such overlay district, and An Ordinance to
amend the Parma Township Zoning to Amend the Zoning Ordinance Map and rezone Parcel
Number 000-06-27-451-001-01 from C-l , General Commercial District to CMM, Commercial
Medical Marihuana Overlay District.

A copy of the proposed ordinance amendments are available for inspection at the Parma
Township Hall, 16407 Comdon Road, Albion MI 49224, and also will be available for inspection
at the public hearing. Written comments on the proposed ordinance amendments will be received
by the Township at the Township Hall prior to the public hearing or at the public hearing. Oral
comments may also be made at the public hearing.

Donald Spangler
Parma Township Clerk
517-629-8277

12/13/18 JCPC Agenda Packet Page 30



KAKIVIA lUWIMbl-IIK
NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING
he Parma Township Planning Commission

'ill hold a public hearing on October 3rd at
:00 pm, at the Parma Township Hall, 16407
lomdon Road, Albion, Ml. The following

'ill be considered: An amendment to the
'arma Township Zoning ordinance to clarify
le requirements for large Gatherings; An
)rdinance to amend the Parma Township
oningOrdinancetoestablishtheCommercial
ledical Marihuana Overlay District; and to
rovide for zoning regulation of Provisioning
:enters as conditional uses within such
verlay district, and An Ordinance to amend
le Parma Township Zoning to Amend the
oning Ordinance Map and rezone Parcel
lumber 000-06-27-451-001-01 from C-1,
ieneral Commercial District to CMM,
temmercial Medical Marihuana Overlay
istrict.. copy of the proposed ordinance
mendments are available for inspection at
le Parma Township Hall, 16407 Comdon
load, Albion Ml 49224, and also will
e available for inspection at the public
earing. Written comments on the proposed
rdinance amendments will be received by
le Township at the Township Hall prior to the
ublic hearing or at the public hearing. Oral
omments may also be made at the public
earing.

Donald Spangler
Parma Township Clerk

2x7 Western & Morning Star
9/16/18
$154.34

12/13/18 JCPC Agenda Packet Page 31



This page is intentionally blank. 

12/13/18 JCPC Agenda Packet Page 32



  
www.region2planning.com/jackson-county-planning-commission/ 

 

Jackson County Planning Commission 
 

Staffed by the Region 2 Planning Commission (R2PC) 
120 W. Michigan Avenue • Jackson, MI 49201 

Phone (517) 788-4426 • Fax (517) 788-4635 
 

COORDINATED ZONING REPORT | #18-30 

 To: County Planning Commissioners 
 From: Grant E. Bauman 
 Date: December 13, 2018 

 Proposal: The rezoning of a portion of a property in Section 27 (T2S-R3W) of Parma 
Township 

Request 

A portion of the subject property is proposed for rezoning to ‘Commercial Medical Marihuana (CMM)’, 
an overlay district, in addition to the current ‘General Commercial (C-1)’ zoning. 

Purpose 

The proposed use of the pertinent portion of the subject property is a provisioning center (see coordi-
nated zoning report #18-29)*. 

Location and Size of the Property 

The subject property (ID# 000-06-27-451-001-01) is situated in Section 27 (T2S-R3W) of the Township 
(see Figure 1). It is located on the east side of Concord Road, north of the I-94 interchange, and has an 
area of approximately 18 acres. The pertinent portion of the subject property comprises the entire 
frontage along Concord Road and has an area of approximately 1.9 acres. 

Land Use and Zoning 

Current Land Use – The portion of the subject property proposed for rezoning to CMM was most re-
cently utilized for retail by the Cherry Creek Winery. The building shown in the aerial photography was 
demolished and a new building is under construction (see Figures 4a and 4b). The remainder of the 
property is vacant/agricultural in nature. The Lion’s Den, a retailer, is located directly to the south. 

Future Land Use – The future land use map in the Parma Township Master Plan places the subject 
property in an area recommended for Highway Commercial uses (see Figure 2), as are properties to the 
north, south, and west. 

Current Zoning – The current zoning of the pertinent portion of the subject property is ‘General Com-
mercial (C-1)’, as is the property directly to the south (see Figure 3).† The remainder of the subject prop-
erty is zoned ‘Agricultural (AG-1)’, as are properties to the north. The property directly to the west is 
zoned ‘Highway Service [Commercial] (C-2)’. 

                                                 
* Please note that the proposed use is listed for informational purposes only. It should not be utilized in making the rezoning 
decision. Circumstances may change tomorrow which make the proposed use impractical. All of the uses that the proposed 
zoning designation would allow are pertinent to the rezoning request. 
† The most recent rezoning of the subject property was recommended for approval by the JCPC on January 11, 2018 (coordi-
nated zoning case #18-01). 

12/13/18 JCPC Agenda Packet Page 33



CZ #18-30 Page 2 
 

Public Facilities and Environmental Constraints 

Water and Sewer Availability – No information was provided by the Township regarding the availa-
bility of water and sewer service. 

Public Road/Street Access – Concord Road, a Class A county primary, provides direct access to the 
subject property (see the Jackson County 2008 Road Map). I-94 is located to the south. 

Environmental Constraints – No information was provided by the Township regarding environmental 
constraints. 

Analysis and Recommendation 

Township Planning Commission Recommendation – The Parma Township Planning Commission recom-
mended approval of the proposed rezoning of the pertinent portion of the subject parcel to CMM (see 
the Zoning Amendment Form and other background information). 

JCPC Staff Analysis – Parma Township’s Zoning Plan contains the following criteria upon which a rezon-
ing request must be considered: 

1. Is the proposed rezoning consistent with the policies and uses proposed for that area in the 
Master Plan? 

Yes. The underlying zoning of the property will remain ‘General Commercial (C-1)’, which is gen-
erally consistent with the master plan (see Figure 2). 

2. Will all of the uses allowed under the proposed rezoning be compatible with other zones and 
uses in the surrounding area? 

Yes. The rezoning to ‘Commercial Medical Marihuana (CMM)’ will only add a single possible ad-
ditional use on the pertinent portion of the subject property: ‘Provisioning Center’. 

3. Will public services and facilities be significantly adversely impacted by a development or use 
allowed under the requested rezoning? 

No. There are no anticipated adverse impacts to public services and facilities. 

4. Will the uses allowed under the proposed rezoning be equally or better suited to the area 
than uses allowed under the current zoning district? 

Yes. The potential addition of a ‘Provisioning Center’, a type of retail commercial use, is in line 
with the underlying C-1 zoning. 

JCPC Staff Advisement – The proposed rezoning appears to be in 
conformance with the intent of the Township’s master plan. How-
ever, the rezoning should only be approved once the ‘CMM’ over-
lay district is established. Based upon this analysis, staff advises 
the Jackson County Planning Commission to recommend AP-
PROVAL WITH COMMENTS of the ‘Commercial Medical Mari-
huana (CMM)’ rezoning request to the Parma Township Board. 

  

Suggested Actions: 

(1) Recommend APPROVAL 
(2) Recommend DISAPPROVAL 
(3) Recommend APPROVAL 

WITH COMMENTS 
(4) Take NO ACTION 

12/13/18 JCPC Agenda Packet Page 34



CZ #18-30 Page 3 
 

Figure 1 

Location 

 

Figure 2 

Municipal Future Land Use 

 

12/13/18 JCPC Agenda Packet Page 35



CZ #18-30 Page 4 
 

Figure 3 

Municipal Zoning 

 

Figure 4a 

Aerial Photo 

 

12/13/18 JCPC Agenda Packet Page 36



CZ #18-30 Page 5 
 

Figure 4b 

Aerial Photo 

 

 

12/13/18 JCPC Agenda Packet Page 37



12/13/18 JCPC Agenda Packet Page 38

gbauman
Typewriter
18      30

gbauman
Typewriter
Porperty identified as #000-06-27-451-001-01 in Section 27 (T2S,R3W)

gbauman
Typewriter
General Commercial                                             C-1

gbauman
Typewriter
Commercial Medical Marihuana Overlay District                       CMM



12/13/18 JCPC Agenda Packet Page 39



12/13/18 JCPC Agenda Packet Page 40



12/13/18 JCPC Agenda Packet Page 41



12/13/18 JCPC Agenda Packet Page 42



12/13/18 JCPC Agenda Packet Page 43



12/13/18 JCPC Agenda Packet Page 44



12/13/18 JCPC Agenda Packet Page 45



This page is intentionally blank. 

12/13/18 JCPC Agenda Packet Page 46



 

Jackson County Planning Commission 
 

Staffed by the Region 2 Planning Commission (R2PC) 
120 W. Michigan Avenue • Jackson, MI 49201 

Phone (517) 788-4426 • Fax (517) 788-4635 
 

COORDINATED ZONING REPORT | #18-31 

 To: County Planning Commissioners 
 From: Grant E. Bauman 
 Date: December 13, 2018 

 Proposal: ‘Large Gatherings’ in Parma Township 

Background Information 

Sec. 8.16 (Article VIII) of the Parma Township Zoning Ordinance currently contains supplemental 
regulations regarding ‘Large Gatherings’. Parma Township presents the following proposed substantive 
amendments regarding those regulations to the Jackson County Planning Commission (JCPC) for its 
comment and recommendation: 

 Changes to the definition of ‘Large Gatherings’ in the first paragraph of Section 8.16, including 
lowering the minimum standard for establishing a large gathering from 75 to 50 people and 
excluding regular church, school, and governmental functions. 

 Eliminating the fee requirement from Sec. 8.16.1(A). 
 Allowing for the grouping of gatherings located on the same property as a single application (at 

the discretion of the Township Board to Sec. 8.16.1(A)(4)). 
 Modifying/adding the information to be addressed in an application listed in Sec. 8.16.1(A)(6) 

(i.e., alcoholic beverages, and health and sanitation facilities, traffic, duration, and security). 
 Modifying/adding the minimum requirements for the following in Sec. 8.16.2(C) regarding 

parking, illumination, insurance, fire protection, fencing, setbacks, indemnification, and alcohol 
service. 

All of the changes to Sec. 8.16 proposed by the Township Planning Commission are identified in red 
type. Further alterations suggested by JCPC Staff are identified in blue type. 

ARTICLE VIII 
SUPPLEMENTAL REGULATIONS 

. . . 

Section 8.16 LARGE GATHERINGS.  Large Gatherings include events such as circuses, carnivals, 
theatrical exhibitions, public shows, displays,festivals, concerts, weddings, outdoor 
gatherings and other similar forms of entertainment, amusement, assembly or 
exhibitions; including but not limited to musical festivals, rock festivals, peace 
festivals, a similar outdoor gathering or assemblies which attract in excess of 
seventy)five (75), outdoor gatherings, or assemblies which attracts in excess of fifty 
(50) persons, as well as any gathering or assembly that would require a rally permit 
or a temporary campground license. Large Gatherings do not include regular church 
functions conducted on church property, regular school functions held on school 
grounds, or governmental functions. Large Gatherings shall require a permit, applied 
for and obtained as hereinafter described, for each such gathering or assembly. shall 
require a permit, applied for and obtained as hereinafter described, for each such 

12/13/18 JCPC Agenda Packet Page 47



CZR #18-31 Page 2 
 

gathering or assembly.  These shall also apply to gatherings or assemblies that would 
require a rally permit, or a temporary campground license. 

 8.16.1 Application for Permit 

 A. Application for a permit to conduct an outdoor gathering or assembly a Large 
Gathering shall be made in writing on forms provided by the Parma Township Clerk 
at least sixty (60) days prior to the date of the proposed gathering or assembly.  Each 
application shall be accompanied by a fee established by the Parma Township Board 
and shall include the following information: 

  1. The name, age, residence and mailing address of the person making the 
application.  (Where the person making the application is a partnership, 
corporation or other association, this information shall be provided for all 
partners, officers and directors, or members.  Where the person is a 
corporation, a copy of the articles of incorporation shall be filed, and the 
names and addresses shall be provided of all shareholders having financial 
interest greater than $500.00.). 

  2. A statement of the kind, character, and type of the proposed Large 
Gatheringgathering or assembly. 

  3. The address, legal description and proof of ownership of the site at which 
the proposed Large Gatheringgathering or assembly is to be conducted.  
Where ownership is not vested in the prospective applicant, he or she shall 
submit an affidavit from the owner indicating his or her consent to the use 
of the site for the proposed Large Gatheringgathering or assembly. 

  4. The date or dates and hours during which the proposed Large 
Gatheringgathering or assembly is to be conducted. If substantially similar 
events are scheduled to take place at the same location on multiple dates 
within 60 days of a prior event, the Township Board may, at its sole 
discretion, allow a single application to be used to obtain a permit for more 
than one event in a single calendar year. 

  5. An estimate of the maximum number of attendantattendees expected at 
the Large Gatheringsgathering or assembly for each day it is conducted and 
a detailed explanation of the evidence of admission which will be used and 
of the sequential numbering or other method which will be used for 
accounting purposes. 

  6. A detailed explanation, including drawings and diagrams where applicable 
of the plan to provide for the following: 

  a. Police and fire protection, as well as security to be provided while 
the event is operational. 

   b. Food and water supply and facilities. 

  c. Whether alcoholic beverages will be provided and served, and, if 
so, whether proper licenses have been obtained regarding the 
same. 

12/13/18 JCPC Agenda Packet Page 48



CZR #18-31 Page 3 
 

  cd. Health and sanitation facilities, including the type, location of, 
and frequency of trash or garbage disposal. 

   de. Medical facilities and services including emergency vehicles and 
equipment. 

   f. Potential traffic concerns, including a description of the volume 
and frequency of increased traffic, and, if alcoholic beverages are 
to be served at the event, how the prospective applicant will 
prevent drunk driving. 

   eg. Vehicle access and parking facilities. 

   fh. Camping and trailer facilities. 

   i. Duration of the Large Gathering. 

   j. Security to be provided while a Large Gathering is occurring, 
including plans that ensure events shall end on a timely and 
consistent basis. 

   gk. Illumination facilities. 

   hl. Communications facilities. 

   Im. Noise control and abatement. 

   n. Insurance and bonding arrangements. 

  In addition, the application shall be accompanied by a map or maps of the overall 
site of the proposed assemblyLarge Gathering. 

 B. Upon receipt of an application for a Large Gathering, the Clerk shall forward copies 
of the application to the Parma Township Police, Jackson County Health Department, 
the Parma Township Building Inspector, and other appropriate public officials as the 
Clerk deems necessary.  The Clerk shall also forward copies of the application to the 
Parma Township Board.  Such officers and officials shall review and investigate 
matters relevant to the application and within twenty (20) days of receipt thereof, 
shall report their findings and recommendations in writing to the Parma Township 
Board. 

 8.16.2 Approval of Permit 

 A. Within 45 days of the filing of the application, the Township Board shall issue, set 
conditions prerequisite to the issuance of, or deny, a permit.  The Township Board 
may require that adequate security or insurance be provided before a permit is 
issued.  Where conditions are imposed as prerequisite to the issuance of a permit or 
where a permit is denied, within 5 days of such action, notice thereof shall be mailed 
to the applicant by certified mail, and, in the case of denial, the reasons therefor 
shall be stated in the notice. 

 B. A permit may be denied if: 

12/13/18 JCPC Agenda Packet Page 49



CZR #18-31 Page 4 
 

  1. The applicant fails to comply with any or all requirements of this ordinance, 
or with any or all conditions imposed pursuant hereto, or with any other 
applicable provision of state or local law; or, 

  2. The applicant has knowingly made a false, misleading or fraudulent 
statement in the application or in any supporting document.  A permit shall 
specify the name and address of the applicant, the kind and location of the 
gathering or assembly, the maximum number of attendantattendees 
permissible, the duration of the permit and any other conditions imposed 
pursuant to this Ordinance.  It shall be posted in a conspicuous place upon 
the premises of the gathering or assembly, and shall not be transferred to 
any other person or location.  The permit shall be valid only for the dates 
issued on the permit. 

 C. In processing an application, the Parma Township Board shall, at a minimum, require 
the following: 

  1. Security Personnel:  The applicant shall employ at his own expense such 
security personnel as are necessary and sufficient to provide for the 
adequate security and protection of the maximum number of 
attendantattendees at the gathering or assembly and for the preservation 
of order and protection of property in and around the site of the gathering 
or assembly.  No permit shall be issued unless the chief law enforcement 
officer for the Township of Parma in cooperation with the Director of State 
Police is satisfied that such necessary and sufficient security personnel will 
be provided by the applicant for the duration of the gathering or assembly. 

  2. Water Facilities:  The applicant shall provide potable water, sufficient in 
quantity and pressure to assure proper operation of all water using 
facilities under conditions of peak demand.  Such water shall be supplied 
from a public water system, if available, and if not available, then from a 
source constructed, located, and approved in accordance with Act 294, 
Public Acts of 1965, as amended, and the rules and regulations adopted 
pursuant thereto, and in accordance with any other applicable state or 
local law, or from a source delivered and stored in a manner approved by 
the Jackson County Health Department. 

  3. Restroom Facilities.  The applicant shall provide separate enclosed flush 
type water closets as defined in Act 266, Public Acts of 1929, as amended, 
and the rules and regulations adopted pursuant thereto and in accordance 
with any other applicable state or local law.  If such flush type facilities 
which are in compliance with Act 273, Public Acts of 1939, as amended, 
and the rules and regulations adopted pursuant there to, and in 
accordance with any other applicable state or local law. 

   The applicant shall provide lavatory and drinking water facilities 
constructed, installed, and maintained in accordance with Act 266 of the 
Public Acts of 1929, as amended, and the rules and regulations adopted 
pursuant thereto, and in accordance with any other applicable state or 

12/13/18 JCPC Agenda Packet Page 50



CZR #18-31 Page 5 
 

local law.  All lavatories shall be provided with hot and cold water and soap 
and paper towels. 

   The number of type of facilities required shall be determined, on the basis 
of the number of attendantattendees, in the following manner: 

     Facilities  Male  Female 

     Toilets   1:50  1:50 
     Water Outlets   1:50 

   Where the gathering or assembly is to continue for more than 12 hours, 
the license shall provide shower facilities, on the basis of the number of 
attendantattendees, in the following manner: 

     Facilities  Male  Female 

     Shower Heads  1:100  1:100 

   All facilities shall be installed, connected, and maintained free from 
obstructions, leaks and defects and shall at all times be in operable 
condition as determined by the Jackson County Health Department. 

  4. Food Service:  If food service is made available on the premises, it shall be 
delivered only through concessions licensed and operated in accordance 
with the provisions of Act 269, Public Acts of 1968, as amended, and the 
rules and regulations adopted pursuant thereto, and in accordance with 
any other applicable state or local law.  If the gathering or assembly is 
distant from food service establishments open to the public, the applicant 
shall make such food services available on the premises as will adequately 
feed the attendantattendees. 

  5. Medical Facilities.  If a Large Gatheringthe gathering or assembly is not 
readily and quickly accessible to adequate existing medical facilities, the 
applicant shall be required to provide such facilities on the premises of the 
gathering or assembly.  The kind, location, staff strength, medical and other 
supplies and equipment of such facilities shall be as prescribed by the 
Jackson County Health Department. 

  6. Liquid Waste Disposal.  The applicant shall provide for liquid waste disposal 
in accordance with all rules and regulations pertaining thereto established 
by the Jackson County Health Department.  If such rules and regulations 
are not available or if they are inadequate, then liquid waste disposal shall 
be in accordance with the United States Public Health Service Publication 
No. 526, entitled, "Manual of Septic Tank Practice."  If liquid waste 
retention and disposal is dependent upon pumpers and haulers, they shall 
be licensed in accordance with Act 243, Public Acts of 1951, as amended, 
and the rules and regulations adopted pursuant thereto, and in accordance 
with any other applicable state or local law, and, prior to issuance of any 
permit, the applicant shall provide the Jackson County Health Department 
with a true copy of an executed agreement in force and effect with a 
licensed pumper or hauler, which agreement will assure proper, effective 

12/13/18 JCPC Agenda Packet Page 51



CZR #18-31 Page 6 
 

and frequent removal of liquid waste from the premises so as to neither 
create nor cause a nuisance or menace to the public health. 

  7. Solid Waste Disposal.  The applicant shall provide for solid waste storage 
on, and removal from, the premises.  Storage shall be in approved, 
covered, fly tight and rodent proof containers, provided in sufficient 
quantity to accommodate the number of attendantattendees.  Prior to 
issuance of any permit, the applicant shall provide the Jackson County 
Health Department with a true copy of an executed agreement in force and 
effect with a licensed refuse collector, which agreement will assure proper, 
effective and frequent removal of solid waste from the premises so as to 
neither create nor cause a nuisance or menace to the public health. 

   The applicant shall implement effective control measures to minimize the 
presence of rodents, flies, roaches and other vermin on the premises.  
Poisonous materials, such as insecticides or rodenticides shall not be used 
in any way so as to contaminate food, equipment, or otherwise constitute 
a hazard to the public health.  Solid waste containing food waste shall be 
stored so as to be inaccessible to vermin.  The premises shall be kept in 
such condition as to prevent the harborage or feeding of vermin. 

  8. Public Bathing Beaches.  The applicant shall provide to make available or 
accessible public bathing beaches only in accordance with Act 218, Public 
Acts of 1967, as amended, and the rules and regulations adopted pursuant 
thereto, and in accordance with any other applicable provision of state or 
local law. 

  9. Access and Traffic Control.  The applicant shall provide for ingress to and 
egress from the premises so as to insure the orderly flow of traffic onto and 
off of the premises.  Access to the premises shall be from a highway or road 
which is a part of the county system of highways or which is a highway 
maintained by the State of Michigan.  Traffic lanes and other space shall be 
provided, designated and kept open for access by ambulance, fire 
equipment, helicopter and other emergency vehicles.  Prior to the issuance 
of a permit, the Director of the Department of State Police and the Director 
of the Department of Transportation must approve the applicants plan for 
access and traffic control. 

  10. Parking.  All parking must be located on site not less than one hundred 
(100') feet from any property line and not less than two hundred (200’) 
from any neighboring residence existing at the time the use is approved. 
There shall be sufficient on-site parking provided to accommodate all 
vehicles related to the events with no on-street parking or parking on a 
neighboring parcel without the written permission of the owner and 
occupant of that parcel, but in no case shall the applicant provide less than 
one automobile space for every four (4) attendantattendees. All parking 
areas shall be clearly marked and shall be adequate to satisfy the volume of 
anticipated or actual use. Dust and drainage from the parking area shall not 
create a nuisance or hazard to adjoining property or uses. Parking shall not 

12/13/18 JCPC Agenda Packet Page 52



CZR #18-31 Page 7 
 

be within any recorded conservation easement.The applicant shall provide 
a parking area sufficient to accommodate all motor vehicles, but in no case 
shall he provide less than one automobile space for every four (4) 
attendants. 

  11. Camping and Trailer Parking.  An applicant who permits 
attendantattendees to remain on the premises between the hours of 2 
a.m. and 6 a.m. shall provide for camping and trailer parking and facilities 
in accordance with Act 171, Public Acts of 1970, as amended, and the rules 
and regulations adopted pursuant thereto, and in accordance with any 
other applicable provision by state or local law. 

  12. Illumination.  The applicant shall provide electrical illumination of all 
occupied areas sufficient to insure the safety and comfort of all 
attendantattendees.  The applicant lighting plan shall be approved by the 
building inspector, and must include specific measures to prevent light 
from interfering with the use or enjoyment of neighboring properties. 

  13. Insurance.  Before the issuance of a permit, the applicant shall obtain 
public liability insurance with limits of not less than $100500,000.00 and 
property damage insurance with a limit of not less than $250,000.00 from a 
company or companies approved by the Commissioner of Insurance of the 
State of Michigan, which insurance shall insure liability for death or injury 
to persons or damage to property which may result from the conduct of 
the Gathering gathering assembly or conduct incident thereto. and 
whichSuch insurance shall remain in full force and effect in the specified 
amounts for the duration of the permit.  The evidence of insurance shall 
include an endorsement to the effect thatrequiring the insurance company 
shall notify the Clerk of Parma Township in writing at least 10 days before 
the expiration or cancellation of said insurance. The insurance required by 
this section shall name Parma Township as an additional insured. A 
certificate of insurance shall not be adequate to satisfy the requirements of 
this Subsection; a copy of the policy or policies meeting the requirements 
of this Subsection shall be required. 

  14. Bonding.  Before the issuance of a permit the applicant shall obtain, from a 
corporate bonding company authorized to do business in Michigan, a 
corporate surety bond in the amount of $50,000 in a form to be approved 
by the Parma Township Board attorney, conditioned upon the applicants 
faithful compliance with all of the terms and provisions of this ordinance 
and all applicable provisions of state or local law, and which shall indemnify 
the Township of Parma, its agents, officers, and employees, and the 
Township Board against any and all loss, injury or damage whatever arising 
out of or in any way connected with the assembly and which shall 
indemnify the owners of property adjoining the assembly site for any costs 
attributable to cleaning up and/or removing debris, trash, or other waste 
resultant from the assembly. 

12/13/18 JCPC Agenda Packet Page 53



CZR #18-31 Page 8 
 

  15. Fire Protection.  The applicant shall, at his or her own expense, take 
adequate steps to insure fire protection as determined by the state fire 
marshal, to insure fire protection. Applicant must demonstrate, via specific 
written plans approved by the Township, that all structures related to a 
Large Gathering are structurally safe and adequately protected against the 
risk of fire. The maximum occupancy of all such structures shall be included 
in any application for a Large Gathering 

  16. Fencing.  The applicant shall erect a fence completely enclosing the site, of 
sufficient height and strength as will preclude persons in excess of the 
maximum permissible attendantattendees from gaining access and which 
shall have sufficient gates properly located so as to provide ready and safe 
ingress and egress. Sight and sound barriers such as walls, berms and/or 
vegetation screens may be required in order to minimize impacts to 
neighboring properties. 

  17. Communications.  The applicant shall provide public telephone equipment 
for general use on the basis of at least one unit for each 1,000 
attendantattendees. 

  18. Setbacks.  All Large Gatherings shall be located on site not less than one 
hundred (100') feet from any property line and not less than two hundred 
(200’) from any neighboring residence existing at the time the use is 
approved. 

  19. Indemnification.  Applicant shall provide a notarized written statement, 
satisfactory to the Township, indemnifying and holding the Township and 
its personnel harmless for any loss, damage, personal injury, or other 
liability associated with a Large Gathering. This statement shall include a 
provision agreeing to pay any attorney’s fees the Township incurs in 
defending itself in a suit related to a Large Gathering occurring on the 
relevant property or the activities occurring as part of such events, 
including if such a suit is filed challenging the approval of a permit 
authorized by the Section. 

  20. Alcohol Service. If alcohol is made available on the premises, it shall be 
delivered on through individuals/entities properly licensed to dispense 
alcohol pursuant to Act 58 of 1998, as amended, and the rules and 
regulations adopted pursuant thereto, and in accordance with any other 
applicable federal, state or local law. 

  1821. Miscellaneous.  Prior to the issuance of a permit, the Township Board may 
impose any other condition(s) reasonably calculated to protect the health, 
safety, welfare and property of attendantattendees or of citizens of the 
Township of Parma. 

 8.16.3 Revocation of Permit 

  The Township Board may revoke a permit whenever the applicant, his employee or 
agent fails, neglects or refuses to fully comply with any and all provisions and 

12/13/18 JCPC Agenda Packet Page 54



CZR #18-31 Page 9 
 

requirements set forth herein or with any and all provisions, regulations, ordinances, 
statutes, or other laws incorporated herein by reference. 

 8.16.4 Violations 

  It shall be unlawful for an applicant, his employee, or agent, to knowingly: 

  1. Advertise, promote or sell tickets to, conduct, or operate a gathering or 
assembly without first obtaining a permit as herein provided. 

  2. Conduct or operate a gathering or assembly in such a manner as to create a 
public or private nuisance. 

  3. Conduct or permit, within the gathering or assembly, any obscene display, 
exhibition, show, play, entertainment or amusement. 

  4. Permit any person on the premises to cause or create a disturbance in, 
around, or near the gathering or assembly by obscene or disorderly 
conduct. 

  5. Permit any person to unlawfully consume, sell, or possess, intoxicating 
liquor while on the premises. 

  6. Permit any person to unlawfully use, sell, or possess any narcotics, narcotic 
drugs, drugs or other substance as defined in Act 343, Public Acts of 1952, 
as amended. 

. . . 

Analysis and Advisement 

JCPC Staff suggested the following changes to the text proposed for amendment: 

 A simple reordering of some words in the first paragraph of Sec. 8.16 in order to make a 
sentence less awkward. 

 Replacing ‘attendant’ with ‘attendee’ throughout Sec. 8.16. 

 Removing the reference to ‘security’ in Sec. 
8.16.1(A)(6)(a) because it is also added as Sec. 
8.16.1(A)(6)(j). 

 The retention of the requirement to explain insurance 
and bonding arrangements as Sec. 8.16.1(A)(6)(n). 

Based on the above analysis, staff advises the Jackson County 
Planning Commission to recommend APPROVAL WITH 
COMMENTS of the proposed amendments regarding ‘Large 
Gatherings’ to the Parma Township Board. 

 

Suggested Actions: 

(1) Recommend APPROVAL 
(2) Recommend DISAPPROVAL 
(3) Recommend APPROVAL 

WITH COMMENTS 
(4) Take NO ACTION 

12/13/18 JCPC Agenda Packet Page 55



JCPC Case #:
(ForJCPCUse Only ) ZONING AMENDMENT FORM

JACKSON COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION
(COORDINATING ZONING)

Return to: Jackson County Planning Commission •c/o Region 2 Planning Commission •120 W. Michigan Avenue •Jackson,Michigan 49201
Please submit the Planning Commission meeting minutes and any reports/exhibits the Commission used to makes its recommendation with thisform. Use
a separateformfor each proposed zoning change. Please include a legal description/ survey with rezoning requests in addition to the Parcel ID Number.
A copy of this form with the JCPC recommendation will be mailed back to the Clerk, who will return a copy to the JCPC with the Township Board Action.

TOWNSHIP PLANNING COMMISSION submits the following proposed zoning change to the JacksonTHE
County Planning Commission for its review, comment, and recommendation:
(ANSWER EITHER A or B)
A. DISTRICT BOUNDARY CHANGE (REZONING):

(Provide the legal and popular property descriptions, the Parcel ID Number(s), the number of acres,and the section(s) in which the
property is located. Attach additional sheets if more space is needed. Attach a map showing all changes and additions.)

1. The above described property has a proposed zoning change FROM
ZONE TO ) ZONE.

2. PURPOSE OF PROPOSED CHANGE:

B. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT:
The following Article(s) and Section(s) is amended or altered: ARTICLE
The NEW SECTION reads as follows: (Attach additional sheets if more space is needed.)

V' 7 l bv v' n SECTION

year APIS'
day

day 3ACLC. PUBLIC HEARING on the above amendment was held on: month lO
7 cgo/ s'D. NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING was published/mailed on the following date: month

(Notice must be provided at least fifteen days prior to the public hearing.)
E. THE NEWSPAPER (having general circulation in Township) carrying the NOTICE: » hOaisnj njThe PROPOSED ZONING AMENDMENT described herein was duly considered by the Township Planning Commission and will be

forwarded to the Township Board with a recommendation to APPROVE or DISAPPROVE.
U04.

year

I I Chair or Secretary / / //< (enter date), 77//̂
JACKSON COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION (JCPC) ACTION:

1. Date of Meeting: month day year
2. The JCPC herewith certifies receipt of the proposed amendment on the above date and:

I I Recommends APPROVAL of the zoning change
I I Recommends DISAPPROVAL of the zoning change for the reasons stated in the attached letter.
I I Recommends APPROVAL of the zoning change with comments, as stated in the attached letter.

Takes NO ACTION.
,Recording Secretary (enter date)

TOWNSHIP BOARD ACTION:
1. Date of Meeting: month
2. The

day year
Township Board herewith certifies that a legally constituted meeting held on the above date and that

the proposed amendment PASSED, DID NOT PASS, or was REFERRED ANEW to the Township Planning Commission.
Township Clerk

Revised:12/19/14

12/13/18 JCPC Agenda Packet Page 56

gbauman
Typewriter
18      31



PARMA TOWNSHIP
JACKSON COUNTY, MICHIGAN

ZONING ORDINANCE AMENDMENT
ORDINANCE NO.

At a regular meeting of the Township Board of Parma Township, Jackson County, Michigan, held at the
p.m., Township Board Member

moved to adopt the following ordinance, which motion was seconded by
Parma Township Hall on , 2018, at

Township Board Member

An Ordinance to amend the Parma Township Zoning Ordinance, as amended, to
clarify the requirements for Large Gatherings,

TOWNSHIP, JACKSON COUNTY, MICHIGAN, ORDAINS:PARMA

SECTION 1. AMENDMENT TO ZONING ORDINANCE ARTICLE VIII, SECTION 8.16:
Zoning Ordinance Article VIII, Section 8.16, is amended to read as follows:

Section 8.16 LARGE GATHERINGS. Large Gatherings include events such as circuses, carnivals,
theatrical exhibitions, public shows, festivals, concerts, weddings, and other similar forms
of entertainment, amusement, or exhibitions, outdoor gatherings, or assemblies which
attracts in excess of fifty (50) persons, as well as any gathering or assembly that would
require a rally permit or a temporary campground license. Large Gatherings do not
include regular church functions conducted on church property, regular school functions
held on school grounds, or governmental functions. Large Gatherings shall require a
permit, applied for and obtained as hereinafter described, for each such gathering or
assembly.

SECTION 2. AMENDMENT TO ZONING ORDINANCE ARTICLE VIII, SECTION 8.16.1:
Zoning Ordinance, Article VII, Section 8.16.1 is amended to read as follows:

8.16.1 Application for Permit

Application for a permit to conduct a Large Gathering shall be made in writing on forms provided
by the Parma Township Clerk at least sixty (60) days prior to the date of the proposed gathering or
assembly. Each application shall include the following information:

The name, age, residence and mailing address of the person making the application. Where
the person making the application is a partnership, corporation or other association, this
information shall be provided for all partners, officers and directors, or members. Where
the person is a corporation, a copy of the article of incorporation shall be filed, and the
names and addresses shall be provided of all shareholders having financial interest greater
than $500.

A.

1 .

A statement of the kind, character, and type of the proposed Large Gathering.
The address, legal description and proof of ownership of the site which the proposed Large
Gathering is to be conducted. Where ownership is not vested in the prospective applicant,
he or she shall submit an affidavit from the owner indicating his or her consent to the use
of the site for the proposed Large Gathering.

2 .

3 .

12/13/18 JCPC Agenda Packet Page 57



The date or dates and hours during which the proposed Large Gathering is to be conducted.
If substantially similar events are scheduled to take place at the same location on multiple
dates within 60 days of a prior event, the Township Board may, at its sole discretion, allow
a single application to be used to obtain a permit for more than one event in a single calendar
year.

An estimate of the maximum number of attendants expected at the Large Gathering for each
day it is conducted and a detailed explanation of the evidence of admission which will be
used and of the sequential numbering or other method which will be used for accounting
purposes.

4.

5.

A detailed explanation, including drawings and diagrams where applicable, of the plan to
provide for the following:

6.

Police and fire protection, as well as security to be provided while the event is
operational.

a.

Food and water supply and facilities.b.

Whether alcoholic beverages will be provided and served, and, if so, whether proper
licenses have been obtained regarding the same

c.

Health and sanitation facilities, including the type, location of, and frequency of
trash or garbage disposal.

d.

Medical facilities and services, including emergency vehicles and equipment.e.
Potential traffic concerns, including a description of the volume and frequency of
increased traffic, and, if alcoholic beverages are to be served at the event, how the
prospective applicant will prevent drunk driving.

f.

Vehicle access and parking facilities.g-
Camping and trailer facilities.h.

Duration of the Large GatheringI.

Security to be provided while a Large Gathering is occurring, including plans that
ensure events shall end on a timely and consistent basis;

J -

Illumination facilities.k.

Communications facilities.1.

m. Noise control and abatement.

In addition, the application shall be accompanied by a map or maps of the overall site of
the proposed Large Gathering.

Upon receipt of an application for a Large Gathering, the Clerk shall forward copies of the
application to the Parma Township Police, Jackson County Health Department, the Parma

B.

12/13/18 JCPC Agenda Packet Page 58



Township Building Inspector, and other appropriate public officials as the Clerk deems necessary.
The Clerk shall also forward copies of the application to the Parma Township Board. Such officers
and officials shall review and investigate matters relevant to the application and within twenty (20)
days of receipt thereof, shall report their findings and recommendations in writing to the Parma
Township Board.

SECTION 3. AMENDMENT TO ZONING ORDINANCE ARTICLE VIII, SECTION 8.16.2,
SUBSECTION (C)(5): Zoning Ordinance, Article VII, Section 8.16.2, Subsection (C)(5) is amended to
read as follows:

Medical Facilities. If a Large Gathering is not readily and quickly accessible to adequate
existing medical facilities, the applicant may be required to provide such facilities on the
premises of the gathering or assembly. The kind, location, staff strength, medical, and other
supplies and equipment of such facilities shall be as prescribed by the Jackson County
Health Department.

5.

SECTION 4. AMENDMENT TO ZONING ORDINANCE ARTICLE VIII, SECTION 8.16.2,
SUBSECTION (C)(10): Zoning Ordinance, Article VII, Section 8.16.2, Subsection (C)(10) is amended
to read as follows:

Parking. All parking must be located on site not less than one hundred (100') feet from any
property line and not less than two hundred (200’) from any neighboring residence existing
at the time the use is approved. There shall be sufficient on-site parking provided to
accommodate all vehicles related to the events with no on-street parking or parking on a
neighboring parcel without the written permission of the owner and occupant of that parcel,
but in no case shall the applicant provide less than one automobile space for every four (4)
attendants. All parking areas shall be clearly marked and shall be adequate to satisfy the
volume of anticipated or actual use. Dust and drainage from the parking area shall not create
a nuisance or hazard to adjoining property or uses. Parking shall not be within any recorded
conservation easement.

10 .

SECTION 5. AMENDMENT TO ZONING ORDINANCE ARTICLE VIII, SECTION 8.16.2,
SUBSECTION (C)(12): Zoning Ordinance, Article VII, Section 8.16.2, Subsection (C)(12) is amended
to read as follows:

Illumination. The applicant shall provide electrical illumination of all occupied areas
sufficient to insure the safety and comfort of all attendants. The applicant’s lighting plan
shall be approved by the building inspector, and must include specific measures to prevent
light from interfering with the use or enjoyment of neighboring properties.

12 .

SECTION 6. AMENDMENT TO ZONING ORDINANCE ARTICLE VIII, SECTION 8.16.2,
SUBSECTION (C)(13): Zoning Ordinance, Article VII, Section 8.16.2, Subsection (C)(13) is amended
to read as follows:

Insurance. Before the issuance of a permit, the applicant shall obtain public liability
insurance with limits of not less than $500,000.00 and property damage insurance with a
limit of not less than $250,000.00 from a company or companies approved by the
Commissioner of Insurance of the State of Michigan, which insurance shall insure liability
for death or injury to persons or damage to property which may result from the conduct of
the Gathering or conduct incident thereto. Such insurance shall remain in full force and

13 .

12/13/18 JCPC Agenda Packet Page 59



effect in the specified amounts for the duration of the permit. The evidence of insurance
shall include an endorsement requiring the insurance company to notify the Clerk of Parma
Township in writing at least 10 days before the expiration or cancellation of such insurance.
The insurance required by this section shall name Parma Township as an additional insured.
A certificate of insurance shall not be adequate to satisfy the requirements of this
Subsection; a copy of the policy or policies meeting the requirements of this Subsection
shall be required.

SECTION 7. AMENDMENT TO ZONING ORDINANCE ARTICLE VIII, SECTION 8.16.2,
SUBSECTION (C)(15): Zoning Ordinance, Article VII, Section 8.16.2, Subsection (C)(15) is amended
to read as follows:

Fire Protection. The applicant shall, at his or her own expense, take adequate steps to insure
fire protection, as determined by the state fire marshal. Applicant must demonstrate, via
specific written plans approved by the Township, that all structures related to a Large
Gathering are structurally safe and adequately protected against the risk of fire. The
maximum occupancy of all such structures shall be included in any application for a Large
Gathering.

15.

SECTION 8. AMENDMENT TO ZONING ORDINANCE ARTICLE VIII, SECTION 8.16.2,
SUBSECTION (C)(16): Zoning Ordinance, Article VII, Section 8.16.2, Subsection (C)(16) is amended
to read as follows:

Fencing. The applicant shall erect a fence completely enclosing the site, of sufficient height
and strength as will preclude persons in excess of the maximum permissible attendants from
gaining access and which shall have sufficient gates properly located so as to provide ready
and safe ingress and egress. Sight and sound barriers such as walls, berms and/or vegetation
screens may be required in order to minimize impacts to neighboring properties.

16.

SECTION 9. AMENDMENT TO ZONING ORDINANCE ARTICLE VIII, SECTION 8.16.2,
SUBSECTION (C)(18): Zoning Ordinance, Article VII, Section 8.16.2, Subsection (C)(18) is amended
to read as follows:

Setbacks. All Large Gatherings shall be located on site not less than one hundred (100')
feet from any property line and not less than two hundred (200’) from any neighboring
residence existing at the time the use is approved.

18.

SECTION 10. AMENDMENT TO ZONING ORDINANCE ARTICLE VIII, SECTION 8.16.2,
SUBSECTION (C)(19): Zoning Ordinance, Article VII, Section 8.16.2, is amended to add the new
Subsection (C)(19), which shall read as follows:

Indemnification. Applicant shall provide a notarized written statement, satisfactory to the
Township, indemnifying and holding the Township and its personnel harmless for any loss,
damage, personal injury, or other liability associated with a Large Gathering. This statement
shall include a provision agreeing to pay any attorney’s fees the Township incurs in
defending itself in a suit related to a Large Gathering occurring on the relevant property or
the activities occurring as part of such events, including if such a suit is filed challenging
the approval of a permit authorized by the Section.

19.

12/13/18 JCPC Agenda Packet Page 60



SECTION 11. AMENDMENT TO ZONING ORDINANCE ARTICLE VIII, SECTION 8.16.2,
SUBSECTION (C)(20): Zoning Ordinance, Article VII, Section 8.16.2, is amended to add the new
Subsection (C)(20), which shall read as follows:

Alcohol Service. If alcohol is made available on the premises, it shall be delivered on
through individuals/entities properly licensed to dispense alcohol pursuant to Act 58 of
1998, as amended, and the rules and regulations adopted pursuant thereto, and in
accordance with any other applicable federal, state or local law.

20 .

SECTION 12. AMENDMENT TO ZONING ORDINANCE ARTICLE VIII, SECTION 8.16.2,
SUBSECTION (C)(21): Zoning Ordinance, Article VII, Section 8.16.2, is amended to add the new
Subsection (C)(21), which shall read as follows:

Miscellaneous. Prior to the issuance of a permit, the Township Board may impose any
other condition(s) reasonably calculated to protect the health, safety, welfare and property
of attendants or of citizens of the Township of Parma.

21 .

SECTION 13. SEVERABILITY: The provisions of this Ordinance are hereby declared to be severable
and if any provision, section or part of this Ordinance is declared invalid or unconstitutional by a court of
competent jurisdiction, such decision shall only affect the particular provisions, section or part involved in
such decision and shall not affect or invalidate the remainder of such Ordinance, which shall continue in
full force and effect.
SECTION 14. EFFECTIVE DATE: This Ordinance shall become effective seven (7) days after its
publication following final adoption or as required by law.

SECTION 15. REPEAL: All Ordinances or parts of Ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed.
Following its introduction and publication prior to final adoption, the above Ordinance was offered for

at a regular meeting of
, 2018, at

and was supported byfinal adoption by
the Parma Township Board, held at the Parma Township Hall on the
p.m., the vote being:

day of

YEAS:

NAYS:

ABSENT/ABSTAIN:

ORDINANCE DECLARED ADOPTED.

Wendy Chamberlain, Township Supervisor

12/13/18 JCPC Agenda Packet Page 61



CERTIFICATION

I hereby certify that:

The above is a true copy of an Ordinance adopted by the Parma Township Board at a duly scheduled
and noticed meeting of that Township Board held on
statutory procedures.

1 .
, 2018, pursuant to the required

A summary of the above Ordinance was duly published in the
newspaper, a newspaper that circulates within Parma Township, on _

2.
, 2018.

Within 1 week after such publication, I recorded the above Ordinance in a book of ordinances kept
by me for that purpose, including the date of passage of the ordinance, the names of the members
of the township board voting, and how each member voted.

3.

I filed an attested copy of the above Ordinance with the Jackson County Clerk on
2018.

4.

ATTESTED:

Donald Spangler, Township Clerk

12/13/18 JCPC Agenda Packet Page 62



PARMA PLANNING COMMISSION

The regular meeting of the Parma Planning Commission was call to order at approximately

7:00 p.m. in the Township Parking lot by Janette Mead

Members Present: Keith Mohney-Dan Merritt -Janette Mead

Motion by Dan Merritt seconded by Keith Mohney to table September 5, 2018 minute meetings.

Motion by Dan Merritt to proceed with Public meeting, seconded by Keith Mohney.

Attorney explained large gathering ordinance.
Guest present was Katie Miller.
Motion by Keith Mohney seconded by Dan Merritt to close public meeting.
Motion to approve minutes from the July 2018 by Dan Merritt seconded by Keith Mohney.

Motion by Dan Merritt to submit to Parma Township Board for approval of Large Gathering

Ordiance and submit to Region II planning commission, seconded by Keith Mohney

Dan Merritt - yes

Keith Mohney- yes

Janette Mead-yes

Motion by Dan Merritt, seconded by Janette Mead, for Section 4 for approval of an over-lay district.

Keith Mohney-yesDan Merritt - yes Janette Mead-yes

Motion by Dan Merritt seconded by Keith Mohney that Tax ID # 000-06-27-451-001-01be included in
the over-lay district of Parma Township.

Dan Merritt - yes Keith Mohney - yes Janette - yes

Motion to adjourn by Dan Merritt, second by Keith Mohney.

12/13/18 JCPC Agenda Packet Page 63



PARMA TOWNSHIP
NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING

The Parma Township Planning Commission will hold a public
hearing on October 3rd at 7:00 pm, at the Parma Township Hall,
16407 Comdon Road, Albion, ML The following will be
considered: An amendment to the Parma Township Zoning
ordinance to clarify the requirements for large Gatherings; An
Ordinance to amend the Parma Township Zoning Ordinance to
establish the Commercial Medical Marihuana Overlay District;
and to provide for zoning regulation of Provisioning Centers as
conditional uses within such overlay district, and An Ordinance
to amend the Parma Township Zoning to Amend the Zoning
Ordinance Map and rezone Parcel Number 000-06-27-451-001-
01 from C-1, General Commercial District to CMM,
Commercial Medical Marihuana Overlay District.

A copy of the proposed ordinance amendments are available for
inspection at the Parma Township Hall, 16407 Comdon Road,
Albion MI 49224, and also will be available for inspection at the
public hearing. Written comments on the proposed ordinance
amendments will be received by the Township at the Township
Hall prior to the public hearing or at the public hearing. Oral
comments may also be made at the public hearing.

Donald Spangler
Parma Township Clerk
517-629-8277

Posted 10/1/18 @ 8:15 am
By Louise Boehlke, Deputy Clerk

12/13/18 JCPC Agenda Packet Page 64



"Louise Boehlke" <parmatwp@core.com>
Planning Commission notice
Wed, September 12, 2018 3:26 pm
ads@salesmanpublications.com

From:
Subject:
Date:
To:

Please publish the attached in your Salesman and Morning Star editions on September 16th.
:

Contact me if you have questions.

Thank you,

Louise

Attachments:
untitled-[l.l]

Size: 0.1 k
Type: text/plain
Notice of Public Hearing on Oct 3rd.doc

Size: 32 k
Type:appiication/msword

12/13/18 JCPC Agenda Packet Page 65



PARMA TOWNSHIP
NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING

The Parma Township Planning Commission will hold a public hearing on October 3rd at
7:00 pm, at the Parma Township Hall, 16407 Comdon Road, Albion, MI. The following will be
considered: An amendment to the Parma Township Zoning ordinance to clarify the requirements
for large Gatherings; An Ordinance to amend the Parma Township Zoning Ordinance to establish
the Commercial Medical Marihuana Overlay District; and to provide for zoning regulation of
Provisioning Centers as conditional uses within such overlay district, and An Ordinance to
amend the Parma Township Zoning to Amend the Zoning Ordinance Map and rezone Parcel
Number 000-06-27-451-001-01 from C-l , General Commercial District to CMM, Commercial
Medical Marihuana Overlay District.

A copy of the proposed ordinance amendments are available for inspection at the Parma
Township Hall, 16407 Comdon Road, Albion MI 49224, and also will be available for inspection
at the public hearing. Written comments on the proposed ordinance amendments will be received
by the Township at the Township Hall prior to the public hearing or at the public hearing. Oral
comments may also be made at the public hearing.

Donald Spangler
Parma Township Clerk
517-629-8277

12/13/18 JCPC Agenda Packet Page 66



HAHIVIA lUWNbl-IIK
NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING
he Parma Township Planning Commission
fill hold a public hearing on October 3rd at
:00 pm, at the Parma Township Hall, 16407
temdon Road, Albion, Ml. The following
fill be considered: An amendment to the
arma Township Zoning ordinance to clarify
le requirements for large Gatherings; An
>rdinance to amend the Parma Township
oningOrdinancetoestablishtheCommercial
ledical Marihuana Overlay District; and to
rovide for zoning regulation of Provisioning
tenters as conditional uses within such
verlay district, and An Ordinance to amend
le Parma Township Zoning to Amend the
oning Ordinance Map and rezone Parcel
lumber 000-06-27-451-001-01 from C-1,
ieneral Commercial District to CMM,
temmercial Medical Marihuana Overlay
listrict.
, copy of the proposed ordinance
mendments are available for inspection at
ie Parma Township Hall, 16407 Comdon
load, Albion Ml 49224, and also will
e available for inspection at the public
earing. Written comments on the proposed
rdinance amendments will be received by
le Township at the Township Hall prior to the
ublic hearing or at the public hearing. Oral
omments may also be made at the public
earing.

Donald Spangler
Parma Township Clerk

2x7 Western & Morning Star
9/16/18
$154.34

12/13/18 JCPC Agenda Packet Page 67



This page is intentionally blank. 

12/13/18 JCPC Agenda Packet Page 68



  
www.co.jackson.mi.us/county_planning_commission 

 

Jackson County Planning Commission 
 

Staffed by the Region 2 Planning Commission (R2PC) 
120 W. Michigan Avenue • Jackson, MI 49201 

Phone (517) 788-4426 • Fax (517) 788-4635 
 

PA 116 FARMLAND AGREEMENT | #18-05 

 Applicant: Jerold L. Buck 
11900 Sutfin Road 
Horton, MI 49246 

 Date: December 13, 2018 

 Application Type: Application for Farmland Agreement in Columbia Township 

 Property Location: An application was filed for the subject properties—Crego Road (000-19-14-200-
001-02 and 000-19-14-200-001-03)—situated in Section 14 of Columbia Twp. 
(T4S,R1E).* They are located on the south side of Crego Road, east of Peterson 
Road Roads (see Map 1). 

 Acreage: The application states that the subject properties encompass 76.09 acres, all of 
which are cultivated.† However, aerial photography (Maps 3a and 3b) indicate, 
and property sheets (attached) confirm that only 65.87 acres are cultivated due 
to the presence of woods and fence rows. A gross annual income of $600 per acre 
was identified, even though this information was unnecessary given that the ap-
plication is for more than 40 acres; the applicant should consider adjusting the 
gross annual income to $683 per tillable acre or its elimination. The properties do 
not contain any residences or other buildings. 

 Term: A term of 10 years is proposed. 

 Future Land Use: The Jackson County Community Comprehensive Land Use Plan places the proper-
ties in areas recommended for "Agricultural Preservation" and a ‘Greenway” 
(Map 2). 

 Staff Comments: An old version of the application for enrollment in the Farmland and Open Space 
Preservation Program was used. The applicant should consider rectifying this mis-
take. The application also contains various errors/omissions which the applicant 
should consider addressing: 

 Question #1: “Jerry L. Buck” was listed, while the attached deeds refer to 
“Jerold L. Buck”. 

 Question #2: The applicant’s address is not listed. 

 

                                                 
* Another property (000-19-14-200-01-04) was also identified. The Township Clerk informed staff that it is the 2 subject proper-
ties combined. 
† It looks as though the acreage listed could be either 75.09 or 76.09 

12/13/18 JCPC Agenda Packet Page 69



FA #18-05 Page 2 
 

 Question #12: It is not indicated if the mineral rights owned by the applicant 
are leased. 

 Question #IV: It was not checked off that the application is for 40 acres or 
more. 

 Question #16: (a) the type of agricultural enterprise is not checked; (b) it 
looks as though the acreage listed could be 75.09 rather than 76.09; and (c) 
the number of acres in cultivation should be 65.87. 

 Question #17: The total acres of tillable land and the average income per 
acre should be 65.87 and $683, respectively. 

Based upon this analysis, staff advises the Jackson County Planning Commission 
to recommend APPROVAL WITH COMMENTS of the application to the Columbia 
Township Board. 

Map 1 
Location Map 

 

12/13/18 JCPC Agenda Packet Page 70



FA #18-05 Page 3 
 

Map 2 
County Future Land Use Map 

 

Map 3a 
Aerial Photograph 

 

12/13/18 JCPC Agenda Packet Page 71



FA #18-05 Page 4 
 

Map 3b 
Aerial Photograph 

 

12/13/18 JCPC Agenda Packet Page 72



12/13/18 JCPC Agenda Packet Page 73



12/13/18 JCPC Agenda Packet Page 74



12/13/18 JCPC Agenda Packet Page 75



12/13/18 JCPC Agenda Packet Page 76



12/13/18 JCPC Agenda Packet Page 77



12/13/18 JCPC Agenda Packet Page 78



12/13/18 JCPC Agenda Packet Page 79



12/13/18 JCPC Agenda Packet Page 80



12/13/18 JCPC Agenda Packet Page 81



12/13/18 JCPC Agenda Packet Page 82



12/13/18 JCPC Agenda Packet Page 83



12/13/18 JCPC Agenda Packet Page 84



12/13/18 JCPC Agenda Packet Page 85



12/13/18 JCPC Agenda Packet Page 86



12/13/18 JCPC Agenda Packet Page 87



12/13/18 JCPC Agenda Packet Page 88



12/13/18 JCPC Agenda Packet Page 89



  
www.co.jackson.mi.us/county_planning_commission 

 

Jackson County Planning Commission 
 

Staffed by the Region 2 Planning Commission (R2PC) 
120 W. Michigan Avenue • Jackson, MI 49201 

Phone (517) 788-4426 • Fax (517) 788-4635 
 

MASTER PLAN REPORT | #18-02 

 To: County Planning Commissioners 
 From: Grant E. Bauman 
 Date: December 13, 2018 

 Proposal: Review of the proposed Henrietta Township Master Plan 

Purpose 

Section 41 (3) of the Michigan Planning Enabling Act (PA 33 of 2008) states that “if the county planning 
commission . . . that receives a copy of a proposed [municipal] master plan under subsection (2)(e) sub-
mits comments, the comments shall include, but need not be limited to, both of the following, as appli-
cable: 

(a) A statement whether the county planning commission . . . considers the proposed master plan to be 
inconsistent with the master plan of any municipality or region described in subsection (2)(a) or (d). 

(b) If the county has a county master plan, a statement whether the county planning commission con-
siders the proposed master plan to be inconsistent with the county master plan”(MCL 125.3841(3)). 

Analysis and Recommendation 

Is the proposed master plan inconsistent with the master plan of any adjacent municipality in Jackson 
County? 

1. Waterloo Township. The land uses proposed along the western border of Waterloo Township 
(no map) appears to be compatible with the proposed land uses along Henrietta Township’s 
eastern border (see Map 1). Both Townships recognize the residential and commercial develop-
ment comprising the unincorporated village of Munith. Waterloo Township places the rest of 
the common boundary in an ‘Agricultural – Rural Residential Area’, compatible with the ‘Agricul-
ture’ area (with areas of ‘Prime Agricultural Soils’) recommended in Henrietta Township. 

2. Leoni Township. The land use proposed along the northern border of Leoni Township (see Map 
2) appears to be compatible with the proposed land uses along Henrietta Township’s southern 
border (see Map 1). Leoni Township’s northern boundary is in an area recommended for ‘Agri-
cultural Preservation’, compatible with the ‘Agriculture’ area (with areas of ‘Prime Agricultural 
Soils’) recommended for most of Henrietta Township’s border. The Phyllis Haehnle Wildlife 
Sanctuary is prominently identified by Leoni Township while the Portage River is identified as an 
‘Area of Special Environmental Concern’ by Henrietta Township. There is a ‘High Density Resi-
dential’ area proposed off of Hawkins Road along the common border in Henrietta Township. 

3. Blackman Township. The land uses proposed along the northeastern border of Blackman Town-
ship in its draft master plan (see Map 3) appears to be compatible with the proposed land uses 
along Henrietta Township’s southwestern border (see Map 1). Blackman Township proposes a 
‘Low-Density Residential’ area along the common border, compatible with the ‘Agriculture’ area 

12/13/18 JCPC Agenda Packet Page 90



MP #18-02 Page 2 
 

(with areas of ‘Prime Agricultural Soils’) recommended in Henrietta Township. A ‘Public/Quasi-
Public’ area is proposed in the vicinity of the Portage River which is identified as an ‘Area of Spe-
cial Environmental Concern’ by Henrietta Township. 

4. Rives Township. The land use proposed along the eastern border of Rives Township in its draft 
master plan (see Map 4) appears to be compatible with the proposed land uses along the north-
western border of Henrietta Township (see Map 1). An ‘Agricultural’ area is proposed in Rives 
Township, compatible with the ‘Agriculture’ area (with areas of ‘Prime Agricultural Soils’) recom-
mended in Henrietta Township. 

Is the proposed master plan inconsistent with Jackson County’s master plan? 

The land uses proposed within Henrietta Township appear to be compatible with the proposed land 
uses from a countywide perspective (see Map 5a and 5b). With the exception of the unincorporated vil-
lage of Munith and the area around Pleasant Lake, most of Henrietta Township is located in an area rec-
ommended for ‘Agriculture’ (with areas of ‘Prime Agricultural Soils’). This is compatible with the county-
wide master plan which places most of the Township in an ‘Agricultural Preservation Area’ and recog-
nizes the residential and commercial development found in the vicinity of Pleasant Lake. 

Staff Recommendation – Based upon the above analysis, staff advises the Jackson County Planning 
Commission to state that, in its opinion, the proposed Henrietta Township Master Plan is generally con-
sistent with: 

 The master plans of adjacent Jackson County municipalities and 

 The Jackson Community Comprehensive Plan. 

  

12/13/18 JCPC Agenda Packet Page 91



MP #18-02 Page 3 
 

Map 1 

Henrietta Township 

 

12/13/18 JCPC Agenda Packet Page 92



MP #18-02 Page 4 
 

Map 2 

Leoni Township 

 

12/13/18 JCPC Agenda Packet Page 93



MP #18-02 Page 5 
 

Map 3 

Blackman Township 

 

Map 4 

Rives Township 

 

12/13/18 JCPC Agenda Packet Page 94



MP #18-02 Page 6 
 

Maps 5a & 5b 

Jackson County 

 

 

12/13/18 JCPC Agenda Packet Page 95




